2003

Glenda W. Giles v. Utah Labor Commission,
Oakridge Country Club, Workers Compensation
Fund, Wasatch Crest Mutual Insurance Company,
Employers' Reinsurance Fund, IRS, Addeco, TAD
Technical Services Corporation, Liberty Mutual
Insurance Company, ConstitutionState Service Co.,
Transportation Insurance Company, and Pacific
Employers' Insurance Company : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

Jurisdictional issues present a question of law, which this Court reviews under a correction-

of-error standard.

Utah Dept. of Admin. Serv. v. Pub. Serv. Com'n, 658 P.2d 601, 608 (Utah 1983)

Issue 1(a) was preserved in Giles Request for Reconsideration and also preserved because jurisdictional issues are never waived and can be raised at any time. (R. Vol. 4 at 1106)

Issue 1(b) could not be raised before the Commission because it involves the Commission's Order Denying Request for Reconsideration. However, it was raised before this Court at the first opportunity, when Giles filed the Docketing Statement. (See page 12 of Docketing Statement).

2. Could Giles' occupational disease claim under statutes existing at the time legally be made a part of Giles' injury by accident claim?

General questions of law are reviewed by this Court under a correction-of-error standard.

Utah Dept. of Admin. Serv. v. Pub. Serv. Com'n, 658 P.2d 601, 608 (Utah 1983)

This issue was preserved for review by being addressed in multiple documents before the Commission. (R. Vol. 2 at 479-480, 483, Vol. 3 at 614, 706, 779-780, 798-799, Vol. 4 at 933, 1010, 1104).

3. Are Oakridge, WCF, Wasatch Crest and ERF contractually prohibited from presenting the defense that Giles' has settled her occupational disease claim?

General questions of law such as contracts are reviewed under a correction-of-error standard.

Utah Dept. of Admin. Serv. v. Pub. Serv. Com'n, 658 P.2d 601, 608 (Utah 1983)

This issue was preserved in Giles Request for Reconsideration dated 21 May 2003. (R. Vol. 4 at 1043, 1081-1086, 1097-1098).

4. Has the Commission shown favoritism to employers and insurance carriers by

promulgating Rules which favor these Respondents, not enforcing Statutes and Rules against Respondents, using inappropriate standards which favor Respondents, etc..

Since this issue involves questions of Rules, Statutes, and standards, this Court should review this issue for correctness, lending no deference to the Commission's decision.

Utah Dept. of Admin. Serv. v. Pub. Serv. Com'n, 658 P.2d 601, 608 (Utah 1983)

This issue was preserved below by Giles at every step of the proceedings before the Commission.

APPLICABLE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, AND RULES

The following statutes and rules, of which the full text as needed can be found in Addendum A, are determinative in this appeal.

Utah Constitution Article I, Section 7.

No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law.

Utah Constitution Article I, Section 11.

All courts shall be open, and every person, for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation, shall have remedy by due course of law, which shall be administered without denial or unnecessary delay; and no person shall be barred from prosecuting or defending before any tribunal in this State, by himself or counsel, any civil cause to which he is a party.

Utah Code Ann. § 35-1-16(1) (1994)

(1) The commission has the duty and the full power, jurisdiction, and authority to determine the facts and apply the law in this or any other title or chapter that it administers
...

Utah Code Ann. § 35-1-44 (1991)

The following terms as used in this title shall be construed as follows:

(7) "Order" means any decision, rule, regulation, direction, requirement or standard of the Commission, or any other determination arrived at, or decision made, by the Commission.

(8) (a) “Personal injury by accident arising out of and in the course of employment”

...
(b) ... does not include a disease, except as the disease results from the injury.

Utah Code Ann. § 35-1-82.53(2) (1988)

(2) The order of the Commission on review is final, unless set aside by the Court of Appeals.

Utah Code Ann. § 35-1-78(1)

(1) The powers and jurisdiction of the commission over each case shall be continuing. The commission, after notice and hearing, may from time to time modify or change its former findings and orders. ...

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

(a) Nature of the Case

This appeal involves a full denial of benefits to Glenda W. Giles in an occupational disease claim, and is from a final Order of the Utah Labor Commission affirming the Presiding Administrative Law Judge’s Order, and denying the Appellant’s Motion for Review and Motion for Reconsideration.

(b) Course of the Proceedings

(1) Present Occupational Disease Claim

1. On 19 May 1995, Giles filed a Notice of Claim with the then Industrial Commission asserting the occupational disease of chemically induced porphyrinopathy sustained from exposure to multiple toxic fumes and substances during the course of her employment at Oakridge Country Club and TAD Technical Services Corporation. (R. Vol. 1 at 245-254).

2. On 27 May 1995, Giles also sent copies of her Notice of Claim by U.S. Postal

Service Certified Mail to Oakridge; Oakridge's insurance carrier, Workers' Compensation Fund of Utah (WCF); TAD Technical; and McDonnell Aircraft, whom Giles worked for under contract through TAD Technical. Giles received U.S. Postal Service Domestic Return Receipts acknowledging reception of her notice of claim by all of these parties no later than 31 May 1995. (R. Vol. 1 at 56-59, Vol. 2 at 383, 520, Vol. 4 at 1168-1169).

3. On 13 September 1995, Oakridge mailed its Employer's First Report of Illness, Commission Form 122, to WCF, Giles, and the Commission. (R. Vol. 3 at 741, 804-805, 958).

4. On 23 December 2000, by U.S. Postal Service Priority Certified Mail with Return Receipt requested, Giles mailed an Application for Hearing to the Adjudication Division, which was received by the Commission on 27 December 2000. (R. Vol. 1 at 96-117). Giles' complete Application packet was lost by the Commission, and not found again until 22 February 2001. (R. Vol. 1 at 119, 120, 122, Vol. 4 at 1174-1177).

5. On 23 February 2001, the Commission sent out a Request for Answer to WCF and Wasatch Crest Mutual Ins.. (R. Vol. 1 at 123-124). On 4 April 2001, Constitution State Service Co. involved itself in this action when it filed a Commission Form 089, Employee Notification of Denial of Claim, with the Commission and sent a copy to Giles. (R. Vol. 1 at 163-164). On 14 May 2001, the Commission sent out an Amended Request for Answer which was to be responded to by no later than 13 June 2001, and contained the note "(Amended to include additional parties.)". The additional parties included were: Oakridge, Employers' Reinsurance Fund (ERF), Internal Revenue Service (IRS), U.S. Attorney's Office, Adecco (f/k/a TAD Technical), Transportation Insurance Co., Pacific Employers Ins.

Co., and Liberty Mutual. (Vol. 1 at 195-196).

6. In response to the Amended Request for Answer, Pacific Employers and Transportation filed denials of claim using Commission Forms 089. (R. Vol. 2 at 322.) Subsequently, Giles challenged the appropriateness of filing Forms 089 in response to a Request for Answer, and Giles requested Entries of Default and made Motions for Summary Judgment against every party who filed a denial using Form 089, instead of filing an Answer. (R. Vol. 2 at 437-439, 440-442, 443-445, Vol. 3 at 673-678, 750-751, 760, 784, Vol. 4 at 994-1007). Neither the Respondent parties nor the Commission have ever denied that the Forms 089 were filed, but now Pacific Employers' and Transportation's Forms are missing from the record. So, these Forms are being included in Addendum B. Thereafter, Pacific Employers' requested Dismissal. (R. Vol. 3 at 623) Giles filed a timely response to this Request for Dismissal, and renewed her Request for an Entry of Default and Motion for Summary Judgment against Pacific Employers. (R. Vol. 3 at 673-678).

7. Most of the remaining parties filed 'Answers' of one sort or another in response to the Request or Amended Request for Answer. (R. Vol. 1 at 147-155, Vol. 2 at 340-344, 387-397, 418-420, 502-504, Vol. 3 at 663-672). In these 'Answers', most of the remaining Respondent parties also moved for Dismissal. (R. Vol. 1 at 147-148, Vol. 2 at 343, 387-389, 418, Vol. 3 at 663). However, the 'Answers' and Motions to Dismiss filed by Wasatch Crest and ERF were not timely. (R. Vol. 1 at 184-185, Vol. 2 at 387-397, 418-420, 477-489, 515-523, 609-622, 663-672, 679-685, 746).

8. On 8 June 2001, TAD Technical and Liberty Mutual (collectively TAD Technical) conducted Discovery by serving Interrogatories on Giles, with copies to the Respondent

parties. (R. Vol. 1 at 371-372). Giles timely responded with her Answers to the Interrogatories and faxed them to counsel for TAD Technical on 8 July 2001; filed a copy with the Commission; and, mailed copies to all the Respondent parties. (R. Vol. 3 at 765-766, 767, 769, 784, 888). With Giles' Answers to Interrogatories, and only therewith, Giles filed the Reports of Dr. Gunnar Heuser dated 21 June 1994 and 7 July 1994. (R. Vol. 3 at 739, 767, 769, 784, 888). Giles does not know why these Answers to Interrogatories and medical reports were omitted from the Record, but she is including them in Addendum C.

9. Giles filed timely responses to all the remaining Respondent parties' 'Answers' and Motions to Dismiss which she received. Giles also requested Entries of Default against most of the Respondent parties, moved for Orders Striking the Defenses and Answers of most of the Respondent parties, and moved for Summary Judgment against most of the Respondent parties. (R. Vol. 1 at 165-182, 184-185, Vol. 2 at 398-406, 477-489, Vol. 3 at 673-676, 679-683).

10. Only one Motion for Summary Judgment was filed by any of the Respondents in this matter, and it was filed by TAD Technical on 8 June 2001. (R. Vol. 2 at 345-370, 409-415). But upon closer scrutiny, the Summary Judgment was requested only regarding the single issue of the last injurious exposure doctrine. (R. Vol. 2 at 350). Dismissal was requested on the other two issues in the Motion. (R. Vol. 2 at 348, 351, 427 of 421-434). Giles responded to the one Motion for Summary Judgment on 18 June 2001. (R. Vol. 2 at 375-385.)

11. On 6 June 2002, PALJ Richard M. La Jeunesse issued his Ruling on Motions for Summary Judgment and Motions to Dismiss, wherein he dismissed with prejudice Giles'

Occupational Disease Claim against essentially all of the parties. (R. Vol. 3 at 720-735). On 5 July 2002, Giles filed with the Commission a Motion for Review of the PALJ's Ruling. (R. Vol. 3 at 736-789, Vol. 1 at 1-95 (Exhibits)). On 1 May 2003, the Commission issued its Order Denying Motion for Review wherein the Commission affirmed the PALJ's Ruling. (R. Vol. 4 at 1030-1036).

12. On 21 May 2003, Giles filed with the Commission a Request for Reconsideration. (R. Vol. 4 at 1037-1120). On 27 May 2003, the Commission issued an Order Extending Time for Reconsideration stating that the Commission would "issue its decision no later than June 30, 2003." (R. Vol. 4 at 1124-1125). However, it was not until 16 July 2003 that the Commission actually issued its Order Denying Request for Reconsideration, wherein the Commission affirmed its prior Order Denying Motion for Review. (R. Vol. 4 at 1231-1235).

13. On 17 July 2003, Giles filed a Petition for Review with this Court. (R. Vol. 4 at 1236-1237). And, on 23 July 2003, Giles filed an Amended Petition for Review with this Court. (R. Vol. 4 at 1239-1240).

(2) The Issue of an Independent ALJ

1. With her Application for Hearing mailed on 23 December 2000, Giles also mailed a request to the Commission that her case be assigned to an ALJ with absolutely no ties to the Commission, based on asserted bias and prejudice of the Commission and its ALJs. This letter was received by the Commission on 27 December 2000. (R. Vol. 1 at 96-97, Vol. 2 at 460-461).

2. On 22 February 2001, newly appointed PALJ Richard M. La Jeunesse prepared

a letter denying Giles' request for an independent ALJ. (R. Vol. 1 at 121-122, Vol. 2 at 463, Vol. 3 at 660, Vol. 4 at 1177, 1182).

3. On 8 March 2001, Giles filed a Motion for Review with the Commission regarding the appointment of an independent ALJ. (R. Vol. 1 at 129-132, Vol. 2 at 465-468). None of the Respondent parties filed a response to the Motion for Review.

4. On 30 April 2001, the Commission issued an Order Denying Motion for Review concerning Giles' request for an independent ALJ. (R. Vol. 1 at 192-194, Vol. 2 at 541-543, Vol. 3 at 631-633).

5. On 17 May 2001, Giles filed a Request for Reconsideration with the Commission regarding the appointment of an independent ALJ, which included a 25 page Summary and 24 separate Exhibits consisting of 81 Pages. (R. Vol. 1 at 199-319, Vol. 3 at 546-579). On 21 May 2001, the Commission issued an Order Extending Time for Reconsideration which allowed other parties to respond to the Request by no later than 29 May 2001, and stated that the Commission would issue a decision no later than 8 June 2001. (R. Vol. 1 at 320-321, Vol. 3 at 581-582).

6. On 11 June 2001, the Commission finally issued an Order Denying Reconsideration on the issue of an independent ALJ. (R. Vol. 2 at 373-374).

7. On 10 July 2001, Giles filed a Petition for Review with this Court on the issue of the appointment of an independent ALJ to preside over her case. (R. Vol. 2 at 416-417).

8. On 6 December 2001, this Court issued its Order dismissing the Petition for Review for lack of jurisdiction, without prejudice to a timely petition for review filed after entry of an order constituting final agency action. (R. Vol. 3 at 686-689, 716-718). Giles

requested Reconsideration from this Court, and when that was denied, Giles sought a Writ of Review from the Supreme Court which was ultimately denied. (R. Vol. 3 at 701-703).

9. On 9 May 2002, this Court issued the Remittitur. (R. Vol. 3 at 714-715).

(3) Prior Workers' Compensation Injury by Accident Claim

1. The following information is based solely on documents filed of Record in the present case. Giles retained counsel who filed an Application for Hearing with the then Industrial Commission on 9 June 1992, seeking workers' compensation benefits for an injury by accident involving a chlorine gas exposure sustained on 7 September 1991, while Giles was employed at Oakridge Country Club. (R. Vol. 1 at 2). The Respondents, Oakridge and/or WCF, denied Giles sustained a compensable injury, and also denied a chlorine gas leak occurred. (R. Vol. 1 at 238, 289, Vol. 2 at 339).

2. On 4 January 1993, a hearing was held before then PALJ Timothy C. Allen. (R. Vol 1 at 5, 36, 167, 170, 210, 221, 222, 226-229, 300, Vol. 3 at 727, 738, 752, 753, 757, 764, 772, 777-778, 800, 802, Vol. 4 at 960). Following the hearing, the PALJ issued preliminary Findings of Fact, and referred the case to a medical panel. (R. Vol. 1 at 3-13). The Medical Panel met with Giles in February 1993, and issued a report which was circulated to the parties in April 1993. (R. Vol. 1 at 14-35). On 15 July 1993, the PALJ issued his Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order wherein he fully denied Giles' claim for benefits. (R. Vol. 1 at 36-49).

3. Giles thereafter retained new counsel who filed a Motion for Review which the Commission denied in its Order Denying Motion for Review dated 6 June 1994. (R. Vol. 1 at 50-52). On Monday, 27 June 1994, Giles submitted a Request for Reconsideration . (R.

Vol. 3 at 835-843). An Order Denying the Request for Reconsideration was issued by the Commission on 14 July 1994. (R. Vol. 1 at 53-54).

4. Giles then filed a Petition for Writ of Review with this Court on 12 August 1994. (R. Vol. 4 at 1103). On 9 September 1994, this Court issued a Sua Sponte Motion for Summary Disposition. The parties responded to the Motion within the time allowed, and the Motion was denied by this Court on 26 October 1994. (R. Vol. 4 at 967, 976).

5. Near the end of February 1995, an offer of settlement was made to resolve Giles' claim of injury by accident on 7 September 1991; and, a Settlement Agreement was executed by Giles, WCF, and the ERF. (R. Vol. 1 at 150-155, Vol. 2 at 360-365, 393-397, Vol. 3 at 666-671, 739, 752, 755, 757, 758-759, 777-778, 779-783, 828-833). A Stipulation to Remand Case for Approval of Settlement was also signed by the attorneys for the parties, but was left undated and was never executed by this Court. (R. Vol. 1 at 149). Without the case being remanded, the PALJ approved the Settlement Agreement on 8 March 1995. (R. Vol. 1 at 154, Vol. 2 at 364, 397, Vol. 3 at 670, 832). This Court finally issued an Order of Dismissal for failure to prosecute on 18 January 1996. (R. Vol. 3 at 845, Vol. 4 at 1117).

(c) Disposition at Agency

The PALJ dismissed with prejudice Giles' occupational disease claim against essentially all of the Respondent parties, which dismissal was affirmed by the Commission both on Review and Reconsideration. Further, the PALJ denied Giles' Request for an independent ALJ, which denial was upheld by the Commission on both Review and Reconsideration. Also, the prior PALJ had dismissed with prejudice Giles' *prior* Workers' Compensation Injury Claim, which dismissal was also affirmed by the Commission on

Review and Reconsideration. After Giles had petitioned this Court for Review of the Commission's prior Orders, and without the case being remanded back to the Commission, the prior PALJ approved a Settlement Agreement of the parties.

STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS

1. From September 1985 to October 1990, Giles worked for McDonnell Aircraft in its office in the big hangars at Hill Air Force Base, under an employment contract with TAD Technical. Liberty Mutual was the workers' compensation insurance carrier for TAD Technical during this time. (R. Vol. 1 at 99, 246, Vol. 2 at 349, 376, 382, 423, 430, Vol. 3 at 853, Vol. 4 at 1055, 1181). While employed by TAD Technical, Giles was exposed on a daily work day basis to multiple toxic fumes and substances, some known and some unknown. (R. Vol. 1 at 246, Vol. 2 at 376, 377, 382, 398, 401, 402, 433-434, 492-493, 494-495, Vol. 3 at 764-765, 771-775, 785, Vol. 4 at 1055-1058, 1060-1061). During this employment, Giles had "chronic bronchitis and headaches and sinusitis". (R. Vol. 2 at 382, 501, Vol. 3 at 764, 772, 887, 888, 890). During her employment with TAD Technical, Giles complained of multiple health problems and symptoms to her physicians. (R. Vol. 1 at 8-9, 23, 24, 27, 40, 41; Vol. 3 at 766-767, 784-785, 786, 887, 888, 890).

2. Giles was first interviewed for employment with Oakridge in May 1991, and during her second interview, Club Manager Michael Whiteley noted that Giles had a chronic cough and watery eyes. (R. Vol. 1 at 5, 37, 101,). Giles worked as the Office Manager for Oakridge from the first of June to December 19, 1991. (R. Vol. 1 at 5, 20, 37, 98). All during her employment with Oakridge, Giles was sick as was testified to by at least three Oakridge employees at Giles' Hearing on her injury by accident claim, and as later found by

the Commission. (R. Vol. 1 at 5, 6, 37, 101). Giles was exposed to multiple toxic substances and materials in her employment with Oakridge. (R. Vol. 1 at 68-70, 100-102, 110, 112, 113, 245, 247, 248, 250).

3. On 9 June 1992, Giles filed an Application for Hearing on a claim for an alleged “injury by accident arising out of and in the course of employment with Oakridge” occurring “on the 7th day of September 1991” at “Oakridge” in “Farmington, Ut.” The accident was described as “chlorine gas exposure” allegedly “causing (s)eizures, memory loss, sinus, heart and lung injury”. (R. Vol. 1 at 2). A Hearing was held before Presiding Administrative Law Judge (PALJ) Timothy C. Allen on 4 January 1993 at the Commission’s offices in Salt Lake City, Utah. (R. Vol. 1 at 5, 36).

4. Subsequent to the Hearing, the PALJ made Findings of Fact, either personally or as a consequence of adopting the Findings of the Medical Panel appointed by him, and those Findings are incorporated in full herein by reference. (R. Vol 1 at 5-13, 15-35, 37-47). Particularly relevant to the present occupational disease case are the following portions of said Findings of Fact:

“... (Giles) had numerous medical problems . . . which necessitated her absence from her employer. . . .” (R. Vol. 1 at 5, 37).

“Having weighed all the testimony on this subject, I (the PALJ) find and conclude that there was no release of chlorine gas on September 7, 1991. Rather, there was a spill of superchlorinated water onto the ground. As testified to by both (Oakridge’s maintenance manager) and (the Utah Occupational Safety & Health Inspector), superchlorinated water is not the equivalent of chlorine gas. Rather, superchlorinated water is analogous to spilling liquid bleach on one’s floor, which is basically what occurred in this particular situation.” (R. Vol. 1 at 11-12 and 43-45). **“Therefore, I find that (Giles) was not exposed to chlorine gas, but rather smelled superchlorinated water which had spilled on the floor.”** (R. Vol. 1 at 45). (Emphasis added.)

“With the file in this posture, case was referred to the Medical Panel to

determine if (Giles') constellation of 29 complaints were medically related to the industrial incident of September 7, 1991. The Panel concluded and found that (Giles') constellation of complaints were not directly related to the industrial event of September 7, 1991." (R. Vol. 1 at 46). (Emphasis added.)

". . . The medical evidence stands for the proposition that (Giles') 29 complaints are of a long-standing nature, and were clearly complained or (sic) and treated prior to the events of September 7, 1991. (Emphasis added.)

"CONCLUSION OF LAW:

"(Giles) has failed to establish legal and medical causation in this matter, and as such her claim of an industrial accident on September 7, 1991 should be dismissed with prejudice.

"ORDER:

"**IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED** that the claim of Glenda Giles alleging a compensable accident on September 7, 1991 should be and the same is hereby dismissed with prejudice." (Emphasis added.) (R. Vol. 1 at 47).

5. Giles filed a Motion for Review that included new medical evidence. (R. Vol. 1 at 50-52, 79-95). On Review, the Commission adopted the findings of fact set forth in the PALJ's decision, and concluded the following. (R. Vol. 1 at 50)

"As noted by the (PALJ), the reasons for (Giles') reaction were not related to her employment. Furthermore, the medical evidence does not establish that her ailments are related to the incident. Consequently, (Giles) has failed to establish her right to workers' compensation benefits."

The Commission acknowledged receipt of the new medical evidence, but refused to even consider it. (R. Vol. 1 at 51).

6. Giles then filed a Request for Reconsideration, and submitted additional new medical reports from a neurotoxicologist/immunotoxicologist in California. (R. Vol. 3 at 835-843). (See Dr. Gunnar Heuser's reports attached to the Answers to Interrogatories included in Addendum C. On Reconsideration, the Commission stated as follows:

"As noted in the (PALJ's) decision:

. . . (Giles) may believe that she was exposed to chlorine gas, but that belief does not prove that an exposure actually occurred. Rather, the preponderance of the evidence indicates that (Giles) was not exposed to chlorine gas on

September 7, 1991.

“In light of the foregoing, the Commission reaffirms its prior decision in this matter and denies (Giles’) Motion for Reconsideration.” (R. Vol. 1 at 53-54).

The Commission failed to even acknowledge receipt of the new medical evidence. Giles subsequently sought Appellate Review with this Court. (R. Vol. 1 at 148, 149, 221; Vol. 3 at 845; Vol. 4 at 967-976, 1031-1032, 1117-1118).

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