2003

Glenda Giles v. Utah Labor Commission, Oakridge Country Club and/or Workers' Compensation Fund; Wasatch Crest Mutual Ins. Co.; Employers' Reinsurance Fund; Adecco, f/k/a/ Tad Technical Services Corp., and/or Liberty Mutual Ins. Co.; Constitution State Service Co.; Ace Usa/Pacific Employer's Ins. Co.; Transportation Ins. Co.; and Internal Revenue Service, : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

The Appellant petitioned the Utah Court of Appeals from a final order of the Utah Labor Commission dated July 16, 2003. This appeal also includes the Labor Commission's Order Denying Motion for Review, dated May 1, 2003. This Court has jurisdiction of this matter pursuant to Utah Code Annotated §§ 34A-2-801(8)(a), 63-46b-16, and 78-2a-3(2)(a).

ISSUES PRESENTED AND STANDARDS OF REVIEW

Issue: Whether the Labor Commission's dismissal of Ms. Giles claims against Ace USA/Pacific Employer's Ins. Co. (hereinafter "PACIFIC") was proper based on the Labor Commission's factual finding that Ms. Giles was not employed during PACIFIC's period of coverage. This issue was preserved on appeal. (R. 720-35; R. 880-883; R. 1030-36, R. 1139-1142).

Standard of Review: "When reviewing the factual findings made by an administrative agency, an appellate court will generally reverse only if the findings are not supported by substantial evidence." Drake v. Industrial Comm'n, 939 P.2d 177, 181 (Utah 1997).

DETERMINATIVE LAW

Utah Code Annotated § 34A-1-301 provides that "[t]he commission has the duty and the full power, jurisdiction, and authority to determine the facts and apply the law in this chapter or any other title or chapter it administers."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case: Ms. Giles filed an application for hearing alleging that she was entitled to benefits from various defendants. Specifically, she filed her claim against TAD Technical Services Corporation and Liberty Mutual Insurance (hereinafter "TAD"), its worker's compensation carrier. Other insurance carriers unilaterally were added by the Labor

Commission because they were thought to be the insurers at the time of Ms. Giles' second application for hearing, even though Ms. Giles had not worked for since 1991.

Course of Proceedings: On May 30, 1992, Ms. Giles filed an Application for Hearing against Oakridge Country Club and/or the Worker's Compensation Fund. (R. 1-95). As a result of Ms. Giles claims against Oakridge, Ms. Giles and Oakridge entered into a full and final settlement agreement. On December 27, 2000, Ms. Giles filed a second Application for Hearing alleging that additional benefits should be paid as a result of chemically induced porphyria. (R. 96-117). Ms. Giles alleges that during her employment with Oakridge Country Club, she was exposed to numerous toxic fumes and materials from May, 1991 to December, 1991. (R. 98).

On December 27, 2000, Ms. Giles' filed a motion with the Labor Commission demanding that an impartial administrative law judge be appointed to the case. (R. 96). Ms. Giles made the request for an impartial administrative law judge because she felt her case would not receive fair treatment based on how she had been treated when she had filed her previous application.

On February 22, 2001, Ms. Giles motion for a non-labor commission administrative law judge was denied. Because the Labor Commission was the only agency with the ability and authority to adjudicate worker's compensation claims, Judge LaJeunesse denied Ms. Giles' request for an impartial administrative law judge.

On May 14, 2001, the Labor Commission unilaterally amended the Application for Hearing to include numerous other insurers, which included PACIFIC. (R. 195). Ms. Giles stated in her Application for Hearing that her alleged exposure to the chemicals occurred from May, 1991 through December, 1991. (R. 98). Ms. Giles further stated that she has been unable to work from December 19, 2001 through the present. (R. 98).

On June 8, 2001, TAD filed an Answer and Motion for Summary Judgment in which TAD challenged Ms. Giles' recent claim for additional benefits. (R. 340-70). Ms. Giles filed a response to TAD's Motion for Summary Judgment arguing that she should be allowed to apportion her compensation between TAD and Oakridge Country Club. (R. 375-85). On July 18, 2001, TAD filed a reply memorandum in support of its motion for summary judgment. (R. 421-34).

On July 23, 2001, TAD filed a Motion for Summary Dismissal, seeking to dismiss Ms. Giles' attempt to appeal because there had been no final order from which to appeal. (R. 450-76). On December 6, 2001, the Utah Court of Appeals granted TAD's motion and dismissed Ms. Giles' appeal because the Court lacked jurisdiction on an appeal made before a final order had been entered below. (R. 686-87). Ms. Giles subsequently appealed the denial of her appeal to the Utah Supreme Court, which refused to hear the claim. (R. 702).

On August 9, 2001, PACIFIC requested Ms. Giles' claims against it be dismissed because she did not work for TAD from 1994 to 1997, the period in which PACIFIC provided insurance coverage. (R. 623). On September 10, 2001, Ms. Giles filed a response to PACIFIC's motion to dismiss. (R. 673).

On June 6, 2002, the Labor Commission ruled on TAD's Motion for Summary Judgment and PACIFIC's Motion to Dismiss. (R. 720-35). The Labor Commission ruled that PACIFIC had not provided coverage from 1985 through 1991, the term of Ms. Giles's employment and claims. Accordingly, the Labor Commission determined that PACIFIC was not a proper party to these proceedings. Ultimately, the Labor Commission determined that PACIFIC's insurance policy did not cover the time period of May, 1991 through December, 1991, the period of time Ms. Giles alleges she was exposed to toxic chemicals.

On July 8, 2002, Ms. Giles filed a Motion for Review. On May 1, 2003, the Labor Commission entered its Order Denying Motion for Review. (R. 1030-36). On May 21, 2003, Ms. Giles filed a Request for Reconsideration, (R. 1037-1120), which the Labor Commission denied after briefing by the parties involved. (R. 1231-35).

On July 16, 2003, Ms. Giles filed a Petition for Review, (R. 1236-37), and filed her Amended Petition for Review on July 23, 2003. (R. 1239-40). Ms. Giles subsequently filed her Docketing Statement. On May 21, 2004, Ms. Giles filed an incomplete Appellant's Brief lacking material and pages. She subsequently filed her Supplement to Appellant's Brief on May 26, 2004 and filed her Amended Brief on June 1, 2004.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Ms. Giles worked as a secretary for TAD from September, 1985 to October, 1990. (R. 354). After Ms. Giles left her employment at TAD, she worked for Oakridge Country Club (hereinafter "Oakridge") from May, 1991 to December, 1991. (R. 98). PACIFIC did not provide TAD insurance coverage from September, 1985 to December, 1991. (R. 623). From May, 1991 to December, 1991, Ms. Giles alleges she suffered from an occupational disease as a result of chemical exposure at Oakridge. (R. 98).

On or about June 9, 1992, Ms. Giles filed an Application for Hearing alleging she was injured on September 7, 1991, as a result of chlorine gas exposure while working for Oakridge. (R. 1-95). On January 4, 1993, the parties presented their case at a hearing in which the administrative law judge ruled that Ms. Giles did not meet her burden of proof and denied her claim. (R.36-49).

On January 5, 1995, Ms. Giles was diagnosed with chemically acquired or chemically induced porphyria from exposure to toxic fumes while she was employed at Oakridge. (R. 367-

69). Oakridge continued to dispute liability, but a settlement agreement was reached and Ms. Giles was then entitled to medical benefits and compensation as a result of the compensation agreement. (R. 360-70).

On December 27, 2000, Ms. Giles filed another Application for Hearing seeking additional benefits from Oakridge and the Workers' Compensation Fund (hereinafter "WCF"). (R. 96-99). Ms. Giles requested the addition of TAD and its insurer, Liberty Mutual Insurance, as parties to this claim. (R. 133-35). On February 23, 2001, the Labor Commission sent Oakridge, WCF, and Wasatch Crest Mutual Insurance a Request for Answer. (R. 123-124). On May 14, 2001, the Labor Commission sent an Amended Request for Answer to TAD, PACIFIC, and Liberty Mutual Insurance. (R. 195-196).

On August 9, 2001, PACIFIC sent Judge LaJeunesse a request for dismissal of Ms. Giles' claims because PACIFIC's term of coverage was from 1994 to 1997. (R. 623). Ms. Giles admitted that she had not worked from December, 1991 to the present. (R. 98). Ms. Giles did not work for TAD from 1994 to 1997 and, therefore, PACIFIC requested that Judge LaJeunesse dismiss Ms. Giles' claims against PACIFIC. (R. 623).

On June 6, 2002, Judge LaJeunesse issued his Ruling on the Motions for Summary Judgment and Motions to Dismiss. (R. 720-35). In the Labor Commission's Findings of Fact, the fact that PACIFIC did not provide coverage from 1985 through 1991 was uncontested. (R. 724). Judge LaJeunesse, therefore, dismissed Ms. Giles' claims against PACIFIC because PACIFIC did not provide coverage in 1991 and Ms. Giles did not work for TAD during the term of PACIFIC's insurance coverage from 1994 to 1997. (R. 732-33). This holding was upheld by the Labor Commission in its Order Denying Motion for Review. (R. 1032-33).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Because it is uncontested that PACIFIC did not provide insurance coverage from 1985 through 1991, the Labor Commission properly dismissed PACIFIC as a party to this claim. Ms. Giles claims that she is entitled to benefits as a result of her toxic exposure during her employment with Oakridge from May, 1991 through December, 1991. PACIFIC's insurance coverage of TAD was from 1994-1997. These facts are undisputed. Consequently, the Labor Commission correctly ruled that PACIFIC was not a proper party to Ms. Giles' Application for Hearing because PACIFIC did not provide coverage from 1985 to 1991.

ARGUMENT

BECAUSE MS. GILES DID NOT WORK FOR TAD DURING PACIFIC'S COVERAGE PERIOD, THE LABOR COMMISSION CORRECTLY DISMISSED MS. GILES CLAIMS AGAINST PACIFIC

Ms. Giles posits that the Labor Commission incorrectly granted PACIFIC's motion to dismiss. PACIFIC asserts that the grant of its motion to dismiss was proper given the undisputed facts in this case. It is undisputed that PACIFIC's insurance policy with TAD was from 1994-1997. (R. 732; R. 1032). It is also undisputed that Ms. Giles' period of potential exposure to chemicals at Oakridge was from May, 1991 to December, 1991. (R. 724; R. 1030). Based upon these undisputed facts, the Labor Commission correctly dismissed Ms. Giles' claims against PACIFIC because PACIFIC's insurance coverage did not encompass Ms. Giles' years of employment from 1985 to 1991. (R. 732). Likewise, PACIFIC did not provide worker's compensation coverage for Oakridge from May, 1991 to December, 1991. (R. 623).

Under Utah Code Ann. § 63-46b-1(4)(b), the Labor Commission may grant a motion to dismiss "if the requirements of Rule 12(b) or Rule 56, respectively, of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure are met by the moving party" Administrative Law Judge LaJeunesse granted

PACIFIC's motion to dismiss based on the uncontroverted facts, above, and the lack of an assertion that PACIFIC issued an insurance policy for any of Ms. Giles' employers from 1985 to 1991. (R. 733). Judge LaJeunesse dismissed PACIFIC as a party to Ms. Giles' claims because there was no insurance coverage and, therefore, the Labor Commission "lacked the authority to keep [PACIFIC] as respondents in the present case." (R. 733).

The Labor Commission based its ruling on a Utah Supreme Court case which determined the commission was "without the authority to apply the terms of an insurance policy to an individual or corporation not named in the policy as the insured." State Ins. Fund v. Industrial Comm'n, 115 Utah 383, 386, 205 P.2d 245, 246 (1949). In State Ins. Fund, the employee's injury occurred after the termination of the policy and before a new policy was issued. *Id.* Accordingly, because the employee was not covered under the insurance policy at the time of the accident, the commission could not apply the terms of the policy in place after the accident had occurred. *Id.*

In the present case, the Labor Commission "has the duty and the full power, jurisdiction, and authority to determine the facts and apply the law in this chapter or any other title or chapter it administers." Utah Code Annotated § 34A-1-301. The Labor Commission found PACIFIC's insurance policy coverage was from 1994 through 1997. The Labor Commission found that PACIFIC did not insure TAD from 1985 through 1991, the time period in which Ms. Giles alleges she was exposed to toxic chemicals and in which her alleged claims arose. The Labor Commission found these facts to be uncontested. Accordingly, the Labor Commission dismissed PACIFIC as a party to Ms. Giles' claims because Ms. Giles did not work for TAD between the years of 1994 through 1997.